
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

October 22, 2013 



CITY OF OAK HARBOR       AGENDA 
PLANNING COMMISSION October 22, 2013 
REGULAR MEETING   7:30 P.M. 
CITY HALL 
 
 
ROLL CALL: FAKKEMA       WASINGER     
 

JENSEN       PETERSON          
    
   FIKSE        FREEMAN      
 
   SCHLECHT    
 
 
 
 Page 3  
1. Approval of Minutes – September 24, 2013 

 
2. Public Comment – Planning Commission will accept public comment for items not 

otherwise on the agenda for the first 15 minutes of the Planning Commission meeting. 
3.  
 Page 21 
3. MARIJUANA RELATED USES – CODE AMENDMENT PROJECT – Public Meeting 
 Staff will brief the Planning Commission on the need to revise the Municipal Code in 
 response to State law changes pertaining to marijuana related uses.  Preliminary 
 research on this topic will also be presented to the Commission.   
 
 Page 37 
4. 2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
 Staff will update the Planning Commission on the continuing work and effort with the 
 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.  Staff will present the scope of work that will be 
 required to update the City’s development regulations.  Staff will also share a draft public 
 participation plan for the 2016 update. An update may also be provided on staff’s 
 coordination with Island County and the work that’s related to the County Wide Planning 
 Policies.   
 



MINUTES 

 

September 24, 2013 

 

3



 

Planning Commission 
September 24, 2013 

Page 1 of 5 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
CITY HALL – COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
September 24, 2013 
 
ROLL CALL:  Present: Keith Fakkema, Kristi Jensen, David Fikse, Bruce Freeman and Sandi 

Peterson  
Absent: Greg Wasinger and Ana Schlecht  
Staff Present:  Development Services Director, Steve Powers; Senior Planners, 
Cac Kamak and Ethan Spoo 

 
Chairman Fakkema called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  
 
MINUTES: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FIKSE SECONDED, MOTION CARRIED TO 

APPROVE THE AUGUST 27, 2013 MINUTES AS PRESENTED. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Bob Wall (1537 SE 8th Avenue) spoke as a member of the Oak Harbor Sister City Committee 
and was interested in the Economic Development Strategy as the Sister City Committee has an 
interest in economic development and cultural exchange. 
 
DIGITAL SIGNS CODE UPDATE – Public Hearing 
Mr. Spoo displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 1) which provided a recap of what 
prompted the sign code update as well as draft code changes to require signs to be turned off 
within 100 feet of sensitive land uses from 11:00 p.m. – 6:00 a.m., changing the minimum 
duration for graphics, images and text to 2 seconds and presented three options for regulating 
brightness (see table below). 
 
 Option A  Option B  Option C  

Brightness Level  1,000 nits (night)/8,000 
nits (day) for C1, I, PIP, 
PBP & PF. 1,500 nits 
(night)/13,000 nits (day) 
for C3, C4, C5. With 
autodim  

0.3 foot-candles 
above ambient with 
autodim  

0.3 FC above 
ambient for C1 
and PF. 0.8 
above ambient 
for C3, C4, C5, I, 
PIP, PBP. With 
autodim.  

Standard Type  Absolute – does not 
take into account 
ambient  

Relative – takes into 
account ambient  

Relative – takes 
into account 
ambient light  

Measurement 
Occurrence  

Day & night  Night  Night  

 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing. 
 
Richard Everett (651 SE Bayshore Drive) spoke about the dark-sky movement, a campaign by 
people who want to reduce light pollution.  He asked that light pollution be considered with 
respect to signs and offered to provide more information on the dark-sky movement. 

4



 

Planning Commission 
September 24, 2013 

Page 2 of 5 

Aaron Syring (32170 SR20) expressed concern about the hours of operation requirement on 
page 38 of the Planning Commission packet. Since his business is located near an apartment 
complex, Mr. Syring asked that the 100 foot distance from residentially zoned property language 
be change to say 100 feet from residential structures rather than the property line.  Mr. Syring 
also stated that his preference was Option A.  
 
Seeing no further comments, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Powers addressed Mr. Syring’s concern about the residentially zoned property language.  
Mr. Powers explained that Mr. Syring’s business and the apartment complex is located in the 
Residential/Office zone and is considered a commercial district.  
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Mr. Fikse believed that Option A was the simplest and easiest option for managing the 
brightness levels and enforcement since the LED signs can be set to a certain nits level.  He 
believed Options B and C would open another level of enforcement against businesses in Oak 
Harbor.  He also raised the scenario in which a non-LED sign was actually brighter than an LED 
sign. Brightness level enforcement on LED signs and not the other type of sign could lead to 
litigation.  
 
Mr. Powers noted that enforcement is complaint driven and staff doesn’t see a different level of 
enforcement with Option B and C but they do have different methodologies for measurement.  
Staff’s original hesitancy for Option A was the cost of the nits gun to do the nits measurement. 
Regarding the non-LED signs, the community hasn’t chosen to set limits on them and Mr. 
Powers said that he wouldn’t propose that we should.  Initially the Planning Commission was 
worried about brightness and the impact on residential/open space areas which is how we got 
on the issue of brightness.  Staff’s goal is to have a code which is simple for the user and simple 
for the staff. 
 
Mr. Freeman indicated that he tended to believe the experts and what the industry is doing 
nation-wide. Based on what the experts say he preferred Option C which is based on the 
industry standard.  
 
Ms. Peterson said she looked at the date of the information that was provided by the experts 
and it was two year old information on technology that is quickly advancing.  She stated that the 
ordinance needs to be clear, concise, easy to understand, business friendly and easy for 
enforcement. 
 
MOTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MR. FIKSE SECONDED RECOMMENDING OPTION 

A TO THE CITY COUNCIL. 
 
Discussion 
Mr. Fikse said his second choice was Option C.  Originally, .3 foot-candles was brought forth as 
a recommendation from the International Sign Association (ISA). Mr. Fikse said he bought a 
foot-candle gun and tested the value and found the value to be too restrictive.  More verification 
is needed on Option C to make sure ISA got it right, we don’t know what ISA’s information is 
and from when it was etc. He stated he believed Option A is the easiest. 
 
 
 
 

5



 

Planning Commission 
September 24, 2013 

Page 3 of 5 

VOTE ON:  
THE MOTION: MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF FOUR IN FAVOR AND ONE  

 OPPOSED TO RECOMMENDING OPTION A TO THE CITY COUNCIL. 
 
ACTION: MS. PETERSON MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED A MOTION TO 

RECOMMEND THAT THE CITY COUNCIL ADOPT THE DRAFT ELECTRONIC 
MESSAGE CENTER SIGN CODE.  MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF FOUR 
IN FAVOR AND ONE OPPOSED. 

 
AMENDMENTS TO OHMC 5.22 – NIGHTCLUBS – Public Hearing 
Mr. Kamak displayed a Power Point presentation (Attachment 2) which reviewed previous 
discussions with the Planning Commission, options considered during the 2012 discussion 
which included licensing nightclubs by occupancy limit in the various zoning districts and the 
occupancy limits recommended by Planning Commission.  Mr. Kamak concluded his 
presentation by recommending that the Planning Commission hold a public hearing and make a 
recommendation to the City Council. 
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing. 
 
Kathy Harbour (Bayshore Drive) spoke in favor of the proposed amendments and asked the 
Planning Commission to forward the Nightclub Ordinance to the City Council for immediate 
approval. 
 
Bill Christens (651 SE Bayshore Drive) spoke in favor of the proposed amendments and asked 
the Planning Commission to forward the Nightclub Ordinance to the City Council for approval. 
 
Billie Cook (651 SE Bayshore Drive) read her comments (Attachment 3). 
 
Deana Royal (920 SE Pioneer Way) stated that she is a Pioneer Way business owner directly 
between Oak Harbor Tavern and Off the Hook.  She spoke in favor of recommending approval 
to the City Council.  She also stated that she would like to see a moratorium on future nightclub 
licenses in the Central Business District (CBD) due to vandalism and fights.  The behavior is not 
conducive for families in the evening and nightclubs should be more restrictive in the CBD. 
 
Richard Everett (651 SE Bayshore Drive) spoke in favor of recommending approval to the City 
Council and suggested a modification to delete the term “other similar health and safety 
impacts” which is repeated throughout the ordinance and replace it with “public health or safety, 
noise and traffic impacts”.  At a minimum delete the “other similar” language. 
 
Seeing no further public comment the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Freeman commented that large businesses can be run with minimal impact to their 
neighbors and that it has always been his feeling that it is a management issue. 
 
ACTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO MAKE 

A RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE 
AMENDMENTS TO THE NIGHTCLUB ORDINANCE.  MOTION CARRIED.  

 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY – Public Hearing 
Mr. Spoo displayed a Power Point Presentation (Attachment 4) which addressed questions and 
comments from the Planning Commission at the August 27th meeting which included the make-

6



 

Planning Commission 
September 24, 2013 

Page 4 of 5 

up of the Economic Development Committee, the Needs Assessment Report regarding income 
and tourism.  Mr. Spoo concluded his presentation by recommending that Planning Commission 
forward the Economic Development Strategy to the City Council with a recommendation to 
approve or discuss what needs to be changed or make motions on what needs to be changed 
and forward a recommendation. 
 
Mr. Fakkema opened the public hearing. 
 
Bob Wall (1537 SE 8th Avenue) suggested offering tax breaks for a number of years to attract 
businesses.  He also asked if the moorage downtown will be looked at.  He restated that he is 
on the Sister City Committee which is looking for a sister city of similar size to Oak Harbor for 
cultural exchange and economic development. 
 
Seeing no further public comment the public hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Spoo responded to Mr. Wall’s questions. 
 
Planning Commission Discussion 
Planning Commissioners had concerns about the amount of money spent on studies and the 
importance of getting support from the community by explaining why a study might be 
necessary. Commissioners asked how the Plan would be implemented, what the game plan 
was and would be role of the Economic Committee going forward. 
 
Mr. Spoo said that the Planning Commission could make a recommendation to forward only the 
actions that require no additional funding or staffing.  Mr. Powers pointed out that not all of the 
dollar amounts are associated with studies. Some of the amounts are dollars that it will take to 
do the actual work such as updating the website. 
 
Mr. Spoo explained that the game plan is to have staff begin implementing those actions that 
can be done with no additional funding and with existing staffing if Council approves the Plan.  
Mr. Spoo indicated that the Committee is currently discussing what their future role will be.   
 
MOTION: MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED A MOTION TO MAKE A 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY.  

 
Mr. Spoo asked the Planning Commission to include in the motion, to allow him the ability to 
revise the purpose, background and conclusion sections. 
 
AMENDEND MR. FREEMAN MOVED, MS. JENSEN SECONDED A MOTION  
MOTION: TO MAKE A RECOMMENDATION TO THE CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE  
  THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY AND TO ALLOW   
  STAFF TO REVISE THE PURPOSE, BACKGROUND AND    
  CONCLUSIONS SECTIONS.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
MOTION: MS. JENSEN MOVED, MS. PETERSON SECONDED A MOTION TO   
  RECOMMEND THAT THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE   
  CONTINUE SERVING DURING THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE ECONOMIC  
  DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

7



 

Planning Commission 
September 24, 2013 

Page 5 of 5 

2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – Public Meeting 
Mr. Kamak displayed a Power Point presentation (ATTACHMENT 5) which presented a review 
of the Department of Commerce checklist that cities use to determine if their current 
comprehensive plan meets the requirements of the Growth Management Act (GMA).  Mr. 
Kamak also reviewed potential updates that need to be done for each of the elements in our 
Comprehensive Plan which are detailed in the staff report and summarized in the Power Point 
presentation. 
 
ADJOURN:  9:30 p.m. 

8



PurposePurpose
Back to the Beginning

Brightness

Hours of OperationHours of Operation

Minimum duration

Recommendation

Back to the BeginningBack to the Beginning

•Why are we talking about electronic message centers?

• Economic development committee: outdated code, 
flexibility for businesses, sales tax leakage

• The public interest e pub c te est

•What is the public interest?

• Shared interest.

• Public health, safety, and welfare

• Practical level:

1. Nuisance (prevent harm)

Back to the Beginning Back to the Beginning contcont……

2. OR something we want to achieve:

• More jobs

• Neighborhood character

• Efficient use of public resources• Efficient use of public resources

• All of the above and more

• See Oak Harbor Comprehensive Plan

•What does this have to do with electronic message centers?

• Comprehensive Plan says what we want to

achieve…(attachment 6)

ATTACHMENT 1

9



Review of Brightness DiscussionsReview of Brightness Discussions
Option A Option B Option C

Brightness Level 1,000 nits
(night)/8,000 
nits (day) for C1, 
I, PIP, PBP & PF. 

00 nits

0.3 footcandles
above ambient 
with autodim

0.3 FC above 
ambient for C1 
and PF. 0.8 
above ambient 
for C3  C4  C5  I  1,500 nits

(night)/13,000 
nits (day) for C3, 
C4, C5. With 
autodim

for C3, C4, C5, I, 
PIP,PBP.With 
autodim.

StandardType Absolute – does 
not take into 
account ambient

Relative – takes 
into account 
ambient

Relative – takes 
into account 
ambient light

Measurement 
Occurrence

Day & night Night Night

Option A Option A ‐‐BackgroundBackground

•Standard: 1,000 nits (night)/8,000 nits (day) – 1,500 nits

(night)/13,000 nits (day).

•Initially: 500 nits (night)/5,000 nits day – PC felt too restrictive

•Different standards based on intensity of zone: C1, I, PIP, PBP,
PF more restrictive. C3, C4, C5 less restrictive.

•Based in part on “cut sheets” (manufacturer’s specs) which

show brightness capabilities of signs and PC comment.

Option B Option B ‐‐BackgroundBackground

•Standard: 0.3 Footcandles above ambient

•Visit from James Carpentier, International Sign Association

•Based on document “Recommended Night‐time Brightness

Levels for On‐premise Electronic Message Centers.”

• Based on research of Dr. Ian Lewin, as well as IES 

document “Light Trespass: Research, Results and 

Recommendation” by Illuminating Engineering Society

(IES).

Option C Option C ‐‐BackgroundBackground
•Standard: 0.3 – 0.8 Footcandles above ambient, depending on 
zone

•Discussion with Jeff Robbins, Lighting Design Lab ‐ Seattle

• ISA publication is “excellent” and “would lean heavily on 
the ISA document” (attach 4).( 4)

•Discussion with Dr. Ian Lewin whose research informed ISA.

• ISA recommended conservative standard for simplicity
and after field testing “in areas of both low and high 
ambient light.”

• Lewin research (attach 5) recommended standards up to
0.8 FC in areas of moderately high ambient electric light

ATTACHMENT 1

10



Option C Option C ‐‐BackgroundBackground

•Planning Commission comments July – recommended using

0.8 FC as some other jurisdictions have done.

•Option C is consistent with research and recent PC  commentsOption C is consistent with research and recent PC  comments

Hours of OperationHours of Operation

•Changed to require signs to be turned off within 100 feet of

sensitive land uses from 11:00 p.m. – 6:00  a.m.

•Consistent with public commentConsistent with public comment

Minimum duration of graphics, images, textMinimum duration of graphics, images, text

•Changed to be 2 seconds

•Consistent with public comment

RecommendationRecommendation

•Conclude public hearing

•Select option for brightness standard and measurement (A, B,

or C)or C)

•Make a recommendation to the City Council to approve the 

draft electronic message center (EMC) sign code.

ATTACHMENT 1

11



ATTACHMENT 2

Request to restrict by size and zoning 

 Regulated in Title 5 ‐ Business Licenses and 
Regulation

 Defined ‐ “Nightclub” means any “premises” as 
defined herein on which any music, singing, dancing 
or other combination of these activities is permitted or other combination of these activities is permitted 
as entertainment after 10:00 p.m., on one or more 
days per week. The playing of incidental music on any 
premises where the receipts for the sale of food 
constitute 75 percent or more of the gross business 
income of the establishment shall not be considered a 
“nightclub” for purposes of this chapter, unless an 
opportunity for social dancing is provided on the 
premises

 Nightclubs are specifically not listed as a use 
in Title 19 – Zoning

 Any permitted or conditional use can apply 
f h l b lfor a Nightclub license

 Nightclub License review process – Lead by 
the Chief of Police with a Public Hearing at 
the City Council

 License review is not a Land use review

 Initially six uses had Nightclub licenses – currently four
 Element –CBD (Central Business District)
 Seven West –CBD (Central Business District)
 Off the Hook –CBD (Central Business District)
O k H b  T   CBD (C t l B i  Di t i t) Oak Harbor Tavern –CBD (Central Business District)

 Mi  Pueblo – CBD (Central Business District)
 El Cazador – C5, Highway Corridor Commercial

 These uses are classified as Bars, Taverns and 
Restaurants – all of which are permitted uses in their 
respective zoning districts

 Some of these uses can continue to exist without a 
Nightclub License

12



ATTACHMENT 2

 Public Input on April 24 at Planning Commission
 New code may not change the operations of current 
nightclubs

 Small scale nightclubs don’t seem to be an impactg p

 All complaints were related to Element nightclub

 Noise created by large groups, loud cars, trespassing, 
lack of respect and poor business practices

 Perceived lack of owner’s cooperation, neighborliness 
and initiative 

 Preference for restricting nightclubs specifically as 
opposed to general uses

 Nexus

 Scale of nightclub has direct relation to the 
negative impacts on adjacent properties

O i   id d    h  J   6th i Options considered at the June 26th meeting

 Regulate nightclubs as a land use

 Licensing uses by area (sq. ft.)

 Licensing by occupancy limit 

 Licensing nightclubs by occupancy limit in  
the various zoning districts?

 Determine the districts where they should be 
prohibited 

▪ Primarily Residential– R1, R2, R3, R4

▪ Mixed ‐ RO, C1

▪ Commercial –C4, Highway Service Commercial

▪ Public – PF

 Licensing nightclubs by occupancy limit in  the 
various zoning districts?
 Regulate the zoning districts based on the intent of 
the zoning district 

CBD  d t i   h i   i d    id ti l   l t▪ CBD – pedestrian emphasis, mixed uses, residential  – lowest
occupancy limit (most restrictive)

▪ C3, ‐workhorse commercial, auto intensive, mixed uses,
residential upper floors  – same as CBD or higher (less 
restrictive)

▪ C5, ‐ Highway Corridor, auto oriented, mixed uses, residential
upper floors  – same as CBD or higher (less restrictive)

▪ PIP, PBP – Planned Developments, no residential (less or no
restrictions)

▪ I1, ‐ Industrial, no residential (less or no restrictions)

13



ATTACHMENT 2

 So what should the occupancy limit be in the 
various zoning districts? 
 Occupancy limits of previous and existing 
nightclub license holdersnightclub license holders
▪ El Cazador – 291 – no impacts reported

▪ Oak Harbor Tavern – 108 – min impacts

▪ Mi Pueblo – 280 – less impacts

▪ 7 West – 165 – min impacts

▪ Off the Hook – 201 – min impacts

▪ Elements – 580 +219 (covered area) – most impacts

 Occupancy limits suggested by Planning Commission

Zoning Districts Starting Point Planning Commission 
recommendation

Central Business District 300 300

C3  Community 300 or 30% increase to 400 300C3, Community 
Commercial

300 or 30% increase to 400 300

C5, Highway Corridor 
Commercial

300 or  60% increase to 
500

400

PBP, PIP 300 or  60% increase to 
500 0r No limitations

No limitations

I1, Industrial 300 or  60% increase to 
500 0r No limitations

No limitations

•Non of the existing licenses will become non‐conforming with the currently 
suggested occupancy limit

 Formal adoption process

 Public Hearing at the Planning Commission

 Public Hearing at the City Council 

 Action by City Council 

14



ATTACHMENT 3

15



Planning Commission: September 24, 2013 

Purpose 

 Address issues from last 
month 

 EDC membership 

 Income 

 Tourism 

Income 

•OH’s lower than average income.

2000 2010 % Change

Bainbridge Island 83,415$       96,130$      15%
Camas 64,885$       77,967$      20%
Des Moines 57,003$       60,762$      7%
Kenmore 72,139$       81,097$      12%
Lake Stevens 68,250$       73,128$      7%
Maple Valley 70,008$       98,264$      40%
Mercer Island 110,830$      123,328$     11%
Moses Lake 42,096$       47,535$      13%
Mountlake  Terrace 52,117$       58,018$      11%
Mukilteo 79,487$       93,120$      17%
Oak Harbor 41,579$       50,372$      21%
SeaTac 47,630$       48,319$      1%
Average for King County Cities 71,522$      82,354$      15%
Average for Cities Outside King County 61,690$      70,896$      15%
Average for All Cities 65,787$      75,670$      15%

Wage Level 2002 2010 2002 2010 2002 2010

$1,250 per month or less 44.5% 37.8% 40.6% 32.3% 28.6% 23.2%

$1,251 to $3,333 per month 40.5% 39.8% 41.3% 37.5% 39.8% 33.9%

$3,333 per month and up 15.0% 22.3% 18.1% 30.2% 31.6% 42.9%

Oak Harbor Island County Washington

Source: American Community Survey 

Source: Quarterly Census of Employment and Wages 

ATTACHEMENT 4

16



Income 

•Best information indicates income figure probably does not 

include Navy allowances for housing,  subsistence, cost of living,
clothing, separation. 

 •In either case, tells us how what perceptions are from the outside

Tourism 

•Lodging tax receipts per capita.

$0.00

$5.00

$10.00

$15.00

$20.00

$25.00

$30.00

$35.00

$40.00

$45.00

D
o

lla
rs

 P
e

r 
C

ap
it

a

Oak Harbor

Coupeville

Langley

Moses Lake

Bainbridge Island

State Average

•True that tourism jobs tend to be low-paying 

•Danger in being overly tourist-oriented

•Oak Harbor seems to be underperforming in the tourism industry

Changes to document 

• None. List of topics discussed:

• Tourism 

• Moorage near downtown

• Amphitheater

• Language referencing additional studies

ATTACHEMENT 4

17



Recommendation 

• Forward to City Council with recommendation to approve

or 

• Discussion of what needs to change

or 

• Make motions of what needs to change and forward

recommendation 

Questions/Comments? 

ATTACHEMENT 4

18



2016 Update 

Scope of amendments to the 
Comprehensive Plan 

Checklist 

Updates 

• Land Use Element
– Update the Future Land Use map to reflect the approved UGA

boundaries. These will reflect the County’s decision on the 2005 UGA
expansions. The City’s work with the County may lead to other
potential amendments if deemed necessary for the 2016 update.

– Demographics and population statistics need to be updated.  The 
population projection must be consistent throughout the Plan, so
other elements such as Housing may need to be updated to reflect the 
most recent projections.

– Population densities and building intensities – acreage of each land
use designation, the acreage in each implementing zone, the 
approximate densities that are assumed, and how it meets the twenty 
year population projection

– Research on the latest Best Available Science (BAS) needs to be done 
to determine if the current regulations on critical areas need to be 
updated.

Updates 

• Housing Element
– Update the statistics on housing that includes an 

inventory and analysis of existing and projected 
housing needs for the 20 year population projection.

– Identify sufficient land for housing – government 
assisted housing, housing for low income families, 
manufactured housing, group homes, and foster care 
facilities. – Inclusion in the  zoning districts

– Adequate provisions for existing and projected 
housing needs for all economic segments – 

– Policy regarding regulations of manufactured homes 
may need to be revised 

ATTACHMENT 5

19



Updates 

• Capital Facilities Plan

– Projects need to be identified for impact fees 
allocation.  This can be done by identifying
projects that are growth and non-growth related.

Updates 

• Transportation Plan
– The Transportation Plan was adopted in 2007 and was 

intended to be a six year plan to identify
improvements.  However, it was also a long term plan
with forecasts to 2035.  The Plan needs to be updated. 
The Transportation Plan, in goals and policies, meets 
most requirements needed for the update, however,
LOS analysis, financing plan, etc need to be updated.

– Since land use and transportation are closely linked, 
an update to the transportation plan could consider 
various land use scenarios and assessments in the
long term planning for improvements and level of 
service.

Updates 

• Consistency

– Consistency is a primary goal for the County Wide
Planning Policies (CWPP).  The city is working with 
the county to maintain consistency in policies that 
impact both jurisdictions.

Updates 

• Development Regulations

– Similar checklist

– Next Planning Commission meeting

ATTACHMENT 5

20



Marijuana Related Uses 

Code Amendment Project 

Public Meeting 

21



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

 Date: October 22, 2013  

 Subject: Marijuana Related Uses – Code 

Amendment Project 

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director 

PURPOSE 

This report presents information and materials pertaining to the marijuana related uses code 

amendment project. 

BACKGROUND 

The Washington State Legislature, during its 2011 Legislative Session, adopted Engrossed 

Second Substitute Bill 5073 (“E2SSB 5073”), which was adopted with a partial veto of the 

Governor, became effective July 22, 2011, and amended RCW 69.51A and renamed the Medical 

Use of Marijuana Act to the “Washington State Medical Use of Cannabis Act.”  At this time the 

City of Oak Harbor does not have specific regulations addressing the facilities or uses allowed 

under RCW 69.51A, other than the requirement for a general business license.  To respond to 

this situation, staff recommended the City Council impose a moratorium to preserve the status 

quo as necessary, until the City can study, draft, hold public hearings and adopt the appropriate 

land use and/or licensing regulations to address these new uses.  The Council accepted that 

recommendation and on September 3, 2013 approved Ordinance No. 1666 (Attachment 1) 

imposing a six-month moratorium. 

Initiative Measure No. 502 (I-502) was approved by Washington State votes on November 6, 

2012.  Its passage purported to legalize the production, sale and use of marijuana products 

purchased from State licensed stores for adults age twenty-one and over.  As in the case above, 

the City does not have specific regulations addressing the facilities or uses identified in I-502, 

other than the requirement for a general business license.  Staff also recommended the City 

Council impose a moratorium to preserve the status quo as necessary, until the State Liquor 

Control Board definitively acts to establish a final and complete set of rules for the licensing of 

all of the new marijuana facilities and uses identified in I-502, and until the City can study, draft, 

hold public hearings and adopt the appropriate land use and/or licensing regulations to address 

these new uses.  The Council accepted that recommendation and on September 3, 2013 approved 

Ordinance No. 1665 (Attachment 2) imposing a six month moratorium.   

RCW 36.70A.390 allows cities to adopt a moratorium without first conducting a public hearing 

so long as one is conducted within 60 days of the adoption of the moratorium.  The public 

hearing on both of these ordinances was held before the City Council on October 1, 2013.  At the 

conclusion of the public hearings the Council left the moratoriums in place.  With their approval 

City of Oak Harbor 

Planning Commission Report 

22



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

of the moratorium ordinances, the City forwarded this matter to the Planning Commission for 

your review and recommendation. 

DISCUSSION 

It is necessary for the City to draft code to regulate marijuana related uses in order to respond to 

the adoption of certain State laws.  The ‘whereas’ statements of Ordinance Nos. 1665 and 1666 

provide a summary of the topics or issues associated with Chapter 69.51A RCW (medical 

marijuana) and I-502 (recreational marijuana).  While each piece of State legislation is unique, 

they both clearly authorize cities to adopt and enforce zoning requirements for these marijuana 

related uses.  For medical marijuana the central zoning issues are the siting of collective gardens 

and medical marijuana dispensaries.  For recreational marijuana the central zoning issues are the 

siting of facilities for the production, processing and retail sales of marijuana or marijuana 

products. 

The amendments adopted to State law in 2011 for medical marijuana did not establish a State 

licensing scheme.  However, the same is not true for I-502 passed by Washington voters in 2012.  

I-502 requires the Washington State Liquor Control Board (LCB) to establish the rules necessary 

to license the producers, processers and retailers of marijuana and marijuana related products.  

The LCB has determined that one (1) retail license may be issued in Oak Harbor.  One of the key 

provisions of I-502 (from a zoning regulation standpoint) specifies that the facilities must be at 

least 1,000 feet from elementary and secondary schools, playgrounds, recreation centers, day 

cares, parks, transit centers, libraries and arcades. 

Staff has prepared a preliminary map that locates all of the sensitive land uses listed above and 

then applies the 1,000 foot buffer to each.  Areas not covered by the buffer are in theory available 

for the siting of the facilities authorized by State law, subject to the underlying zoning supporting 

such a use.  Please note this map is preliminary and is only intended to facilitate a discussion 

with the Planning Commission.  It does not represent any form of staff recommendation.   

Since the moratorium ordinances may only be in effect for six months, unless extended by the 

City Council, staff has prepared a tentative schedule that completes this code amendment project 

within that timeframe.  The tentative schedule is as follows: 

10/22/13 Planning Commission  Background briefing and discussion 

11/26/13 Planning Commission  Introduce draft code; open public hearing 

12/10/13 Planning Commission  Close public hearing; make recommendation 

1/22/14 City Council (workshop) Briefing on PC work and recommendation  

2/4/14 City Council  Consider draft ordinance 

2/118/14 City Council  Consider draft ordinance (if necessary) 

23



P:\PlanCom\PC13\10-22-13\Marijuana codes.doc 

The schedule may of course be modified to fit the needs of the community, Planning 

Commission and City Council. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

A significant amount of information is available on these subjects, with more becoming available 

almost on a daily basis.  Staff has found that two websites are particularly helpful when 

researching these topics: Municipal Research and Services Center of Washington (MRSC) and 

the Washington State Liquor Control Board.  Should the Commission wish to review this 

information for yourself, the following links are provided for your use: 

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/MedMariReg.aspx 

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/502/recmarijuana.aspx 

http://liq.wa.gov/marijuana/I-502 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Provide feedback to staff on the preliminary map and locations for  marijuana related uses

within Oak Harbor

 Accept public comment

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Ordinance No. 1666

2. Ordinance No. 1665

3. Preliminary map depicting I-502 sensitive land uses and the 1,000 foot buffers

24

http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/MedMariReg.aspx
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/legal/502/recmarijuana.aspx
http://liq.wa.gov/marijuana/I-502


25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



SW FRANKLIN

CT

SW 13THCT.

S
W

 IN
G

L
E

S
ID

E
C

T
.

S
W

K
IT

T
IT

A
S

C
T

.

SW LOOKING
GLASS  LOOP

S
W

T
O

U
R

IS
T

S
T

.

N
W

K
IT

S
A

P
S

T
.

NW
LANYARDLOOP

N
W

Q
U

E
S

T
S

T
.

N
E

M
E

E
T

E
R

L
N

.

N
E

N
E

T
L

A
N

L
N

.

N
E

P
A

T
R

IC
K

L
N

.

NE SUMNER
DR.

NE SEALTH PL.

N
E

N
A

S
H

T
E

R
.

McKINNON  DR.

T
IM

A
R

U
  L

N
.

SWANTOWN  RD.

CAREFREE  P
L.

VIC
TO

RIA
 W

AY

M
O

N
TIC

ELLO
  W

AY

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
  L

O
O

P

L
O

E
R

L
A

N
D

  L
N

.

HIGHLAND  DR.

H
E

M
E

N
W

A
Y

  P
L

.

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.  
E

A
S

T

R
ID

G
E

V
IE

W
  D

R
.

ORCHARD  LOOP

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.  
E

A
S

T

O
L

Y
M

P
IC

  D
R

.

NW  5TH  AVE.

N
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

CROSBY  RD.

C
R

O
S

B
Y

  R
D

.

S
W

 L
A

N
S

D
A

L
E

  S
T

.

NW  2ND  AVE.

NW KITSAP  TERR.

N
W

 O
U

T
R

IG
G

E
R

  L
O

O
P

N
W

  R
O

E
D

E
R

  D
R

.

SW LESCHI  DR.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

SW PONSTEEN  D
R.

SW
 ROEDER  DR.

SW
ANTOW

N  RD.

D
IX

IE
  L

N
.

D
A

V
ID

  L
N

.

COYOTE  WAY

McGUIRE  PL.

PINECONE  PL.

WILDBERRY  LN.

DIXIE  LN.DAVID  LN.

CROSBY  RD.

C
R

O
S

B
Y

  R
D

.

NW CROSBY AVE.

A
IR

L
IN

E
  W

A
Y

SW LOERLAND  DR.

NW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 O
U

T
R

IG
G

E
R

  L
O

O
P

SW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 L
A

T
E

E
N

  S
T

.

N
W

 M
IZ

Z
E

N
  D

R
.

NW  2ND  AVE.
NW  2ND  AVE.

NW  1ST  AVE. NW  1ST  AVE.

W. WHIDBEY  AVE. W. WHIDBEY  AVE.

SW  2ND  AVE.

SW  1ST  AVE.

SW  2ND  AVE.

N
W

 F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.

N
W

 D
E

L
T

A
  C

T
.

N
W

 C
A

P
T

A
IN

 C
T

N
W

 B
O

S
U

N
  S

T
.

SW  1ST  AVE.

S
W

 O
V

E
R

W
A

Y
 S

T
.

NW 7TH   AVE.

COLUMBIA  DR.1
0

0
  N

W
  S

T
.

NW COLUMBIA  DR. N
W

 A
T

A
L

A
N

T
A

  W
A

Y

NW CALISTA  CT.

E
N

S
IG

N
  D

R
.

F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.

FAIRHAVEN  DR.

NW 3RD  AVE.

ENSIGN  DR.

NW 7TH   AVE.

NW 3RD  AVE.

C
T

.
NW  9TH  PL.

Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
D

E
C

K
  L

O
O

P

NW  8TH  AVE.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NW  REDWING  DR.

NW  14TH  WAY

N
W

  K
A

T
H

L
E

E
N

  D
R

.

NW  REDWING  DR.

N
W

 E
L

W
H

A
  C

T
.

N
W

 C
A

M
E

L
L

A
  L

O
O

P

NW  CHERRY HILL  LOOP

NW 13TH  CT.

NW  12TH  LOOP

N
W

 A
L

M
O

N
D

  L
O

O
P

NW HYAK  DR.

NW DORY  DR.
NW ILLAHEE  DR.

NW 8TH   AVE.

CLIPPER  DR.

NW 10TH   AVE.

A
N

C
H

O
R

  D
R

.CATHLAMET  DR.

N
W

 IS
SA

Q
U

A
H

  S
T.

NW CROSBY AVE.

NW
 DORY  DR.

NW HIYU  DR.

E
L

W
H

A
  S

T
.

N
W

 F
R

IG
A

T
E

  S
T

.

N
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.

N
W

 E
L

L
IS

  W
A

Y

H
ARVEST  D

R.

NE  4TH  AVE.

N
E

 IZ
E

T
T

  S
T

.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

N
E

 FA
B

E
R

  S
T

.

N
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.
NW COLUMBIA  DR.

N
E

 E
R

N
S

T
  S

T
.

NE  7TH  AVE.

NE  4TH  AVE.
NE  4TH  AVE.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

NE  7TH  AVE.

N
E

 IZ
E

T
T

  S
T

.

NE  6TH  AVE.

NE  7TH  CT.

NE  6TH  AVE.

NE  5TH  AVE.
NE  5TH  AVE.

NE  3RD  AVE.

NE  2ND  AVE.

NE 1ST  AVE.

N
E

 K
E

T
T

L
E

  S
T

.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

N
E

 N
O

O
N

A
N

  L
O

O
P

N
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.

SE  2ND  CT.

S
E

 P
A

S
E

K
  S

T
.

N
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.

NE  3RD  AVE.

NE  10TH   PL.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  S

T
.

N
E

  C
O

R
D

E
R

O
  P

L
.

N
E

  C
O

R
D

E
R

O
  P

L
.N
E

  B
IG

 B
E

R
R

Y
  L

O
O

P

EASY  ST.

K
O

E
T

JE
  R

D
.

NE  8TH  AVE.

N
E

 M
U

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

NARROW
S  AVE.

NE  7TH  PL.

NE  8TH  AVE.

NE  9TH  AVE.

NE  10TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

NE  10TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

O
`L

EARY  S
T.

N
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

N
E

 G
O

L
D

IE
 S

T
.

N
E

 Q
U

E
E

T
S

  S
T

.

N
W

DR.

N
E

 T
A

F
T

S
O

N
  S

T
.

Q
U

IL
L

 T
E

R

CRESCENT  HARBOR  RD.

SE  BARRINGTON  DR.

SE  11TH  AVE.

S
E

 C
IT

Y
 B

E
A

C
H

  S
T

.

SE FIDALGO  AVE.

S
. B

E
E

K
S

M
A

 D
R

.

SE BAYSHORE  DR.

S
E

 IL
W

A
C

O
 A

L
L

E
Y

S
E

 E
LY  S

T.

S
E

 E
L

Y
  S

T
.

SE CABO
T  DR.

SE  4TH  AVE.

SE  8TH  AVE.

SE  6TH  AVE.

SE  3RD  AVE.

S
E

 F
IS

H
E

R
  C

T
.

SE  5TH  AVE.

SE  2ND  AVE.

S
E

 D
O

C
K

  S
T

.

SE  8TH  AVE.

S
E

 G
L

E
N

C
O

E
  S

T
.

SE  3RD  AVE.S
. O

A
K

 H
A

R
B

O
R

  S
T

.

SE  9TH  AVE.

S
E

 J
E

N
S

E
N

  S
T

.

S
E

 IR
E

L
A

N
D

  S
T

.

S
E

 M
ID

W
A

Y
  B

L
V

D
.

SE  6TH  AVE.

SE  10TH  AVE.

S
E

 J
E

R
O

M
E

  S
T

.
S

E
 J

E
R

O
M

E
  S

T
.

S
E

 O
`L

E
A

R
Y

  S
T

.
S

E
 O

`L
E

A
R

Y
  S

T
.

S
E

 M
A

Y
L

O
R

  S
T

.

S
E

 N
E

IL
  S

T
.

S
E

 P
A

S
E

K
  S

T
.

S
E

 Q
U

A
K

E
R

  S
T

.

B
A

Y
M

O
N

T
  D

R
.

OAKMONT  LN.

GLENMONT  CT.

S
W

  O
L

IV
E

  S
T

.

SW  STREMLER  DR.

Q
U

IN
C

E
  S

T
.

SW  17TH  AVE.

SW  16TH  AVE.

N
E

IN
H

U
IS

  S
T

.

FIRESIDE  LN.CROSSW
OODS  C

IR
.

JUNIPER TULIP  LN.

N
O

R
M

A
N

  D
R

.LATO  DR.

K
LI

C
K

IT
AT  T

ER.

S
W

 K
A

L
E

E
T

O
N

CROSSW
OODS  CIR.

CT.

LOOP

H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

ID
A

P
L

.

SW
 SW

ANTOW
N  RD.

SW  19TH  CT.
S. B

EEKSMA  D
R.

SW  B
AYSHORE  D

R.SW  KIMBALL  DR.

SW  BARRINGTON  DR.

S
W

 IS
L

A
N

D
E

R
  L

N
.

SW 12TH

SW  11TH  CT.

S
W

  E
R

IE
  S

T
.

B
A

R
L

O
W

  S
T

.

B
O

W
M

E
R

  S
T

.

CT.

S
W

 K
A

L
A

M
A

  L
O

O
P

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW  9TH  AVE.

SW  8TH  AVE.

SW QUINAULT  ST.

S
W

  R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
  D

R
.

S
W

  P
U

F
F

IN
  S

T
.

S
W

  O
T

T
E

R
C

R
E

S
T

  S
T

.

S
W

  O
R

C
A

S
  S

T
.

SW  7TH  AVE.

S
W

  Q
U

IL
C

E
N

E
  L

N
.

S
W

 M
c

C
R

O
H

A
N

  S
T

.

S
W

 L
O

N
D

O
N

  T
E

R
.

S
W

 K
IN

G
M

A
  C

T
.

S
W

 IN
G

LE
W

O
O

D
  L

N
.

S
W

 J
U

D
S

O
N

  D
R

.

SW  6TH  AVE.

S
W

 M
U

Z
Z

A
L

L
  S

T
.

SW  4TH

SW  4TH  AVE.

S
W

 K
IR

K
  L

N
.

SW JUDSON  DR.
SW

 RO
BERTSO

N
  DR.

SW PUTNAM  DR.

SW PERIWINKLE  LN.

SW  2ND  CT.

S
W

 H
E

L
L

E
R

  S
T

.

CT.

SW MUZZALL  ST.

SW  BARRINGTON  DR.

SW  8TH  AVE.

S
W

 D
Y

E
R

  S
T

.

SW HARRIER  CIR.

S
W

 H
A

R
R

IE
R

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW
 FLEET  ST.

SW  10TH  AVE.

SW  4TH  AVE.

SW  3RD  AVE.

SW  8TH  AVE.

S
W

 E
R

IE
  S

T
.

SW ECHO  LOOP

E
R

IE
  S

T
.

SW ERIE  CIR.

SW  3RD  AVE.

S
W

 F
A

IR
H

A
V

E
N

  D
R

.
S

W
 F

A
IR

H
A

V
E

N
  D

R
.

SW  6TH  AVE.
SW  6TH  AVE.

SW  6TH  AVE.

SW CASTILIAN  DR.

S
T

.

W
A

L
S

E
R

  L
N

.

LIN
K

S  W
A

Y

WEDGEWOOD  LN.

FORT NUGENT  AVE.

INDEPENDANCE

COLONIA
L  W

AY

HERIT
AGE  W

AY

SW
 V

IC
TO

RY S
T.

SW
  V

AN
G

ARD
  S

T.

SW
  W

IN
D

SO
R

  S
T.

SW
  X

A
VIE

R
  D

R
.

SW  WINCHESTER  ST.

S
W

  W
A

T
E

R
S

ID
E

  C
T

.

SW  ROCK  ROSE  DR.

S
W

  U
L

S
S

E
S

S
W

  T
A

H
O

E
  S

T
.

S
W

  S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D
  C

T
.

S
W

  U
N

IO
N

 S
T

.

CT.

LIBERTY  LN.

S
W

  R
O

C
K

  R
O

S
E

 D
R

.

F
A

IR
W

A
Y

  L
N

.

S
H

A
M

R
O

C
K

  L
N

.

WIELDRAAYER  RD.

SUNNYSIDE

TH
O

R
N

B
E

R
R

Y 
 D

R
.

SW FAIRVUE  PL.

PL.

S
W

 S
T

R
O

O
P

S
  S

T
.

PUTNAM  DR.

SUNNYSIDE  AVE.

AVE.

SW
 T

H
O

R
N

B
ER

R
Y 

 D
R

.

SW ROBERTSON  D
R.

ORCHARD  LOOP

M
O

N
TIC

ELLO
  W

AY

FAIRWAY  LN.

M
U

L
L

IG
A

N
W

A
Y

SW
 SW

ANTOW
N  RD.

B
O

U
L

D
E

R
  M

E
A

D
O

W
  L

N
.

DYER  RD.

CARLTON  WAY

CARLTON  WAY

MISTY  LN.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.

CARLTON  WAY

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.

NAPOLEON  DR.

C
O

N
IF

E
R

  L
N

.

W
E

L
L

IN
G

T
O

N
  D

R
.

MISTY  LN.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.
B

O
O

N
  R

D
.

B
O

N
A

P
A

R
TE

  L
N

.

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

 L
N

.

B
O

N
A

P
A

R
T

E
  L

N
.

WATERLOO  RD.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

G
R

E
A

T
V

IE
W

  P
L

.
G

R
IE

N
T

JE
S

  L
N

.

SC
EN

IC
  H

EIG
H

TS  ST.

WALKER  HEIGHTS  PL.

RIDGEWAY  DR.

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

  S
T

.

S
W

  R
O

S
A

R
IO

  P
L

.

S
W

 V
IS

IT
  P

A
R

K
  D

R
.

VISTA  CIR.

CHULA

KIWI  ACRES  LN.

SW 24TH AVE.

VIS
TA  L

N.

S
W

 R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y
  D

R
.

WATERLOO  RD.

CAPITAL  ST.

TALON  LOOP

S
W

  F
R

E
U

N
D

  S
T

.

D
A

W
N

EAGLE  VISTA  AVE.

POPPY'S  PL.

SW
 D

IL
LARD  L

N
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  S

T
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  S

T
.

S
W

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

  D
R

.

VIEW

C
R

IC
K

ET

ST.H
A

R
B

O
R

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  R

D
.

S
C

E
N

IC
  H

E
IG

H
T

S
  R

D
.

BONNIE  VIEW  ACRES  RD.

C
A

N
T

E
B

U
R

Y
  L

N
.

R
A

IN
IE

R
  L

N
.

E
A

G
L

E
  C

R
E

S
T

  D
R

.

STARWANA
DUPONT  RD.

CT.

R
A

IN
IE

R
  L

N
.

CANTEBURY  LN.

B
O

N
N

IE
  V

IE
W

  A
C

R
E

S
  R

D
.

BONNIE  VIEW  ACRES  RD.

SCENIC ESTATES  LN.

M
O

N
R

O
E

  L
A

N
D

IN
G

  R
D

.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

B
A

L
D

A
  R

D
.

JAYDEE  WAY

BLUEWATER  LN.

BLUEWATER  LN.

M
O

N
R

O
E

  L
A

N
D

IN
G

  R
D

.

MILLER  RD.

MILLER  RD.

A
P

E
N

A
  D

R
.

H
A

S
T

IE
  L

A
K

E
  R

D
.

WINDY  RIDGE  RD.

B
O

O
N

  R
D

.
B

O
O

N
  R

D
.

HASTIE  LAKE  RD.

M
A

T
U

R
E

  V
IE

W
  L

N
.

HASTIE  LAKE  RD.

FERN  PL.

M
O

SS  LN
.

SWANTOWN  RD.

NE  16TH  AVE.

CASE  RD. CASE  RD.

FAKKEMA  RD.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

GUN  CLUB  RD.

OAK  ST.

ERIN  PARK  RD.

P
A

IN
T

E
R

S
  W

A
Y

G
O

L
D

IE
  S

T
.

N
E G

O
LD

IE ST.

NE 21ST CT.

MOBIUS  LOOP

INDUSTRIAL  AVE.

N
E

 H
A

L
Y

A
R

D
 L

N
.

G
O

L
D

IE
  R

D
.

O
A

K
 H

A
R

B
O

R
  R

D
.

SCHAY  RD.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

KIMS  WAY

GUN  CLUB  RD.

RED  ROBIN  LN.

QUAIL  LN.

R
IF

E
  R

D
.

H
E

L
L

E
R

  R
D

.

CLOVER  VALLEY  RD.

YATES  RD.

STARFLOWER  RD.

AULT  FIELD  RD.
AULT  FIELD  RD.

S
U

M
M

IT
  B

L
V

D
.

ARWIN  DR.

YVONNE  AVE.

REBECCA  LN.

LINDA  LN.

H
A

W
K

S
  P

R
A

IR
IE

  R
D

.

S
U

M
M

IT
  B

L
V

D
.

G
O

L
F

  C
O

U
R

S
E

  R
D

.

A
L

P
IN

E
  D

R
.

SUNSET  VIEW  PL.

A
L

P
IN

E
  D

R
.

G
O

L
F

  C
O

U
R

S
E

  R
D

.

CLOVER  VALLEY  RD.

T
H

U
N

D
E

R
  L

N
.

DUFFERS  LN.

IR
O

N
W

O
O

D
  L

N
.

O
L

D
  G

O
L

D
IE

  R
D

.

COUNTY  ROAD  301

G
O

L
D

IE
  R

D
.

ST.

L
A

N
G

E

W
H

IT
N

E
Y

  D
R

.

W
  G

R
E

E
N

  V
A

L
L

E
Y

  R
D

.

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE R
O

U
TE 2

0

ST
A

TE
 R

O
U

TE
 2

0

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE ROUTE 20

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

S
T

A
T

E
 R

O
U

T
E

 2
0

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

STATE ROUTE 20

S
W

 R
O

O
D

Z
A

N
T

 S
T

.

NW  12TH  CT.

S
W

S
IL

V
E

R
B

E
R

R
Y 

ST
.

C
A

S
H

MERE

TER.

GREENW
OOD ST.

SPARROW CIR.

PATRIOT WAY

S
W

 U
P

LA
N

D
 C

T.

SW LOPEZ DR.

S
W

  B
A

R
R

IN
G

T
O

N
  D

R
.

N
E

 M
E

L
R

O
S

E
 D

R
.

N
E

 R
O

N
H

A
A

R
 S

T
.

E
B

B
T

ID
E

N
W

 C
LI

P
P

E
R

 D
R

.

IL
L

A
H

E
E

  D
R

.

NW HASLO LP.

N
W

 F
A

L
L

S
 C

R
E

E
K

 L
O

O
P

NW 11TH AVE.

N
W

 E
L

L
Y

 P
L

.

KATHLEEN

NW LOLA TER.

HIGHLAND  DR.C
R

E
S

T
V

IE
W

 P
L.

E. PIONEER  WAY

E. PIONEER  WAY

NE  16TH  AVE.

S
W

 F
A

IR
W

A
Y

 P
O

IN
T

 D
R

.

S
W

 A
B

E
R

D
E

E
N

 C
O

U
R

T

SW FAIRWAY POINT DR.

S
W

 C
O

O
P

E
R

 W
A

Y

S
W

 D
O

W
N

F
IE

L
D

 W
A

Y

SW BERWICK DR.

SW 18TH AVE.

S
W

 B
E

R
W

IC
K

 D
R

.

S
W

 C
A

R
N

E
G

IE
 S

T
.

S
W

 J
U

D
S

O
N

  D
R

.

NE  11TH  AVE.

NE  11TH  AVE.

NE RIKSEN W
AY

S
E

 R
E

G
A

T
T

A
  D

R
.

E. WHIDBEY  AVE.

E. PIONEER  WAY

AULT  FIELD  RD.

N
W

  J
IB

 S
T

.

NE 24TH LN

N
W

 S
C

E
N

IC
 V

IS
T

A
 S

T
.

N
W

 U
P

S
A

LA
 D

R
.

NW 9TH AVE.

NW  5TH  AVE. N
W

 O
X

F
O

R
D

 S
T

.

NW  6TH  AVE.

A
IR

L
IN

E
  W

A
Y

N
W

 N
A

V
IG

A
T

O
R

 L
P

.

SW 24TH AVE.

SW 29TH PL.

SW  20TH  CT.

S
W

 M
U

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 P
L

.

BARRINGTON
SW

D
R

.

S
W

 F
O

U
N

D
E

R
S

 D
R

.

S
E

 A
S

T
E

L
 S

T
.

S
E

 E
L

Y
  S

T
.

N
W

 L
O

F
T

O
N

 L
P

NW LONGVIEW 

D
R

.

N
E

 B
A

R
R

O
N

 D
R

.

N
W

   
  P

R
O

W
 S

T
.

N
W

   
  K

E
Y

 S
T

.

S
E

 C
A

S
T

L
E

P
A

R
K

 C
T

.

S
W

 H
A

T
H

A
W

A
Y

 S
T

.

NE  7TH  AVE.

NW 12TH  LOOP

Feet

0 1000 2000

Buffer Zones

 Schools - 1000 ft Buffer

 Recreation Facility - 1000 ft Buffer

 Childcare Center - 1000 ft Buffer

 Public Parks - 1000 ft Buffer

 Public Transit Center - 1000ft Buffer

 Arcade - 1000 ft Buffer

 Zoning 2013

 Single Family Residential

 Limited Multi-Family Residential

 Multi-Family Residential

 Mulit-Family Residential

 Residential Office

 Neighborhood Commercial

 Central Business District

 Central Business District 1

 Central Business District 2

 Community Commercial

 Highway Service Commercial

 Highway Corridor Commercial

 Planned Industrial Park

 Industrial

 Planned Industrial Park

 Public Facilities

 Open Space

 Outside City Limits

PRELIMINARY

ATTACHMENT 3

36



2016 Comprehensive Plan 

Update 

Public Meeting 

37



CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

TO: PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: CAC KAMAK, SENIOR PLANNER 

SUBJECT:  2016 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE – COUNTY/CITY 

DATE: 10/17/2013 

CC: STEVE POWERS, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR 

2016 Comprehensive Plan Update 

Development Regulations checklist 

The Department of Commerce has provided a checklist that cities can use to determine if 

the City’s plans and regulations meet the requirements of the Growth Management Act 

(GMA) and other legislation that have been adopted in recent years.  The Planning 

Commission reviewed the checklist for the Comprehensive Plan at its September 24, 

2013 meeting.  This month, Oak Harbor’s Development Regulations were reviewed 

against this checklist.  The checklist is attached to this memo and includes comments 

related to the requirements. 

The checklist is in the same format as the one provided for the Comprehensive Plan.  The 

checklist is formatted with four columns.  Column one lists the requirements that the plan 

must meet.  Column two indicates whether the current plan meets that requirement.  

Column three indicates whether an update is required or whether further research is 

required to determine that.  Check marks have been placed to indicate whether 

requirements are met or need to be addressed. The last column has notes indicating 

locations of the regulations within the Oak Harbor’s Municipal Code (OHMC) and other 

comments if an update is necessary to meet the requirement.  

A summary of the amendments that need to be done is provided below. 

 Frequently Flooded Areas:  Five types of critical areas (wetlands, critical aquifer

recharge areas, fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, frequently flooded

areas, and geologically hazardous areas) must be addressed in the city’s

development regulations.  The city’s development regulations have language to

address four of these critical areas except for Frequently Flooded Areas.

 Regulations to protect the quality and quantity of ground water used for public

water supplies:  Oak Harbor has a contract with Anacortes for its water supply

that comes from the Skagit River.  However, the city owns numerous wells within

38



2 

Oak Harbor for emergency water supply.  Regulations to protect the quality and 

quantity of this ground water need to be added to the code. 

 The zoning code will need to be amended to differentiate family daycare centers

from commercial day care.

 Regulations will need to be amended to add electric vehicle battery charging

stations in zoning districts.  This can be done by adding it to the list of uses in

selective and appropriate zoning districts.

 The validity of preliminary plats was extended by HB 2152 and will need to be

reflected in the City’s code.

 The timeframe for expending impact fees has been extended and will therefore

need to be reflected in the code.

Public Participation Plan 

Section 36.70A.140 of the Revised Code of Washington requires local governments to 

establish and broadly communicate to the public a Public Participation Plan (PPP) which 

identifies procedures providing for “early and continuous public participation” in the 

amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations implementing such 

plan.   

A draft Public Participation Plan (PPP) is attached to this memo for your review.  The 

PPP identifies the Planning Commission as the primary body to consider the amendments 

and hold hearings.  Planning Commission meetings are not only an effective way to 

obtain public input but it is also an effective way to disseminate information to the public 

because the meetings are recorded and rebroadcasted on Channel 10 public access 

television. Planning Commission meetings are played an average of five times a week till 

the next meeting is recorded and ready for broadcast. The rebroadcasting of the Planning 

Commission meeting is an effective way to keep transparency in the decision making 

process. 

A dedicated webpage under the City’s website has been created to provide access to all 

the information that is related to the 2016 update in one place.  This webpage will have 

links to Planning Commission reports related to the update.  A dedicated email address 

2016update@oakharbor.org has been created for easy public input and comments. 

Other means of public input such as open houses, ad hoc committees, workshops, public 

displays, etc. have also been identified as outreach mechanisms.  The decision to use 

these can be made based on the topic of discussion and the most effective way to gain 

public input on that specific topic.   

39

mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org


II. Required Components of Development Regulations WAC 365-196-810

1. Regulations designating and protecting critical areas are required by RCW 36.70A.170, RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1).
Note: A voluntary stewardship program was created in ESHB 1886 (2011) as an alternative for protecting critical areas in areas used for
agricultural activities.  Counties may choose to opt into this voluntary program before January 22, 2012.  Click here for the requirements 
of the voluntary stewardship program.

a. Classification and designation of each of the five types of critical
areas (wetlands, critical aquifer recharge areas, fish and wildlife
habitat conservation areas, frequently flooded areas, and geologically
hazardous areas), if they are found within your city.
RCW 36.70A.170; WAC 365-196-830(2)
Note: Senate Bill 5292 adopted in 2012 clarified that certain water-
based artificial features or constructs are excluded from being 
considered part of a fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas.

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further 

review 
needed 

The Comprehensive Plan includes 
goals and policies in the 
Environmental Element 
addressing the five types of 
critical areas (Pg 136-139).  The 
Comp Plan also has maps that 
indicate the locations of the five 
types on critical areas.  The 
OHMC has regulations for 
wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, 
fish and wildlife and geologically 
hazardous areas (OHMC 20.24, 
20.25, 20.28 and 20.32).  
Frequently Flooded areas are not 
addressed in the OHMC. 

b. Findings that demonstrate Best Available Science (BAS) was included 
in developing policies and development regulations to protect the 
function and values of critical areas. In addition, findings should 
document special consideration given to conservation or protection 
measures necessary to preserve or enhance anadromous fisheries.
RCW 36.70A.172(1); WAC 365-195, WAC 365-195

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Goal 7 of the Environmental 
Element addresses the use of BAS 
in the process of designating and 
regulating critical areas (Pg 135). 

c. Regulations that protect the functions and values of wetlands.
RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1)
WAC 365-190-090

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Goal 9 of the Comp Plan 
addresses the protection of 
wetlands (Pg 136).  OHMC 20.24 
contains the regulations for 
wetlands. 

d. A definition of wetlands consistent with RCW 36.70A.030(21)
WAC 365-190-090, WAC 173-22-035

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

The definition of wetlands  is 
consistent with the state’s 
definition. 

e. Delineation of wetlands using the approved federal wetlands 
delineation manual and applicable regional supplements [RCW
36.70A.175, RCW 90.58.380 (1995) (2011)]
WAC 173-22-035

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

The comprehensive plan maps 
were updated in 2005.  
Delineations are typically done at 
the time of land development. 

f. Regulations that protect the functions and values of critical aquifer
recharge areas (“areas with a critical recharging effect on aquifers
used for potable water” RCW 36.70A.030(5)(b)).
RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1)
WAC 365-190-100

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 20.32 contains regulations 
for critical aquifer recharge areas. 

g. Regulations to protect the quality and quantity of ground water
used for public water supplies.
RCW 36.70A.070(1) 

 No 
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes 
 No
 Further

review
needed

Oak Harbor uses a water supply 
system from the Skagit River and 
does not rely on ground water.  
The Water System Plan addresses 
wellhead and outlines procedures 
for surveying and protecting 
them from contamination.  The 
OHMC does not contain any 
regulations to protect the wells. 

40

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-810
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.170
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://www.scc.wa.gov/index.php/Voluntary-Stewardship-Program/Information-on-the-Ruckelshaus-Process/Voluntary-Stewardship-Program.html
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.170
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-830
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-195
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-195
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-190-090
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-190-090
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=173-22-035
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=173-22-035
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-190-100
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070


h. Regulations that protect the functions and values of fish and wildlife
habitat conservation areas.
RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1)
WAC 365-195-925(3), 365-190-130

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Goal 10 in the EE addresses this 
requirement (Pg 137).  OHMC 
20.25 has regulations specifically 
for fish and wildlife conservation.  

i. Regulations that protect the functions and values of frequently
flooded areas.
RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1)
WAC 365-190-110, WAC 173-158-040

 No 
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Goal 12 in the EE addresses this 
requirement (Pg 138).  OHMC 
17.20 contains regulations to 
prevent damage from floods. 

j. Definition of “fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas” does not
include such artificial features or constructs as irrigation delivery
systems, irrigation infrastructure, irrigation canals, or drainage 
ditches that lie within the boundaries of and are maintained by a port 
district or an irrigation district or company.  New in 2012.
RCW 36.70A.030(5) 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further

review
needed

The definition in OHMC 
20.25.010 does not include 
artificial features or constructs. 

k. Provisions to ensure water quality and stormwater drainage
regulations are consistent with applicable Land Use Element policies.
RCW 36.70A.070(1) 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Regulations in OHMC 12.30 
address stormwater and its 
management. The regulations 
create a strong link between 
stormwater management and 
land use permits.   

l. Regulation of geologically hazardous areas consistent with public
health and safety concerns.
RCW 36.70A.030(9), RCW 36.70A.060(2) and RCW 36.70A.172(1) 
WAC 365-190-120

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 20.28 is dedicated to 
regulations for geologically 
sensitive areas and identifies 
unstable slopes, steep slopes and 
moderate to high liquefaction 
areas mapped in Oak Harbor as 
areas to be regulated by the code 
for public health and safety. 

m. Provisions that allow “reasonable use” of properties constrained by
presence of critical areas.
RCW 36.70A.370. See Attorney General’s Advisory Memorandum:
Avoiding Unconstitutional Takings of Private Property for guidance

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 20.12.060 addresses 
reasonable use of properties 
constrained by presence of 
critical areas. 

n. If your city is assuming regulation of forest practices as provided in
RCW 76.09.240: forest practices regulations that protect public
resources, require appropriate approvals for all phases of conversion 
of forest lands, are guided by GMA planning goals, and are consistent
with adopted critical areas regulations.
RCW 36.70A.570, Amended in 2007, 2010 and RCW 76.09.240
Amended in 2007, 2010
Note:   Applies only to counties fully planning under the GMA with a
population greater than 100,000 and the cities and towns within
those counties where a certain number of Class IV applications have
been filed within a certain timeframe.

 No
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes 
 No
 Further

review
needed

NA 

11. Shoreline Master Program
See Washington State Department of Ecology’s SMP Submittal Checklist 

a. Zoning is consistent with Shoreline Master Program (SMP)
environmental designations.
RCW 36.70A.070; RCW 36.70A.480
WAC 365-196-580

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

b. If SMP regulations have been updated to meet Ecology’s shoreline 
regulations: protection for critical areas in shorelines is accomplished 
solely through the SMP.
RCW 36.70A.480(4), Amended in 2003 and 2010 and RCW
90.58.090(4).  WAC 365-196-580 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

City has adopted new SMP 
regulations that are in 
compliance with this 
requirement.  Awaiting 
Department of Ecology approval. 

41

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-195-925
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-190-110
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=173-158-040
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.060
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.172
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-190-120
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.370
http://www.atg.wa.gov/uploadedFiles/Home/About_the_Office/Takings/2006%20AGO%20Takings%20Guidance%281%29.pdf
http://www.atg.wa.gov/uploadedFiles/Home/About_the_Office/Takings/2006%20AGO%20Takings%20Guidance%281%29.pdf
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.570
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=76.09.240
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/sea/shorelines/smp/toolbox/process/checklist.html
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.480
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-580
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.480
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=90.58.090
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=90.58.090
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-580


12. The Zoning Code should contain the following provisions:

a. Family daycare providers are allowed in areas zoned for residential
or commercial uses.  Zoning conditions should be no more restrictive
than those imposed on other residential dwellings in the same zone,
but may address drop-off and pickup areas and hours of operation.
RCW 36.70A.450, WAC 365-196-865

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further 

review 
needed 

The zoning code may need to be 
amended to include “Family Day 
Care” centers as a principal 
permitted use. The definition 
section may also need to be 
amended to differentiate 
between a “Family” day care and 
commercial day care. 

b. Manufactured housing is regulated the same as site-built housing.
RCW 35.21.684, 35.63.160, 35A.21.312 and 36.01.225, All Amended 
in 2004

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 16.04.020(2) addresses 
this requirement. OHMC 
19.20.105 includes Manufactured 
Homes subdivisions and 
regulated same as single family 
detached structures. 

c. If the city has a population over 20,000 accessory dwelling units
(ADUs) are allowed in single-family residential areas.
RCW 43.63A.215(3)

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 19.34 is specifically 
dedicated to accessory dwelling 
units. 

a. If there is an airport within or adjacent to the city: zoning that
discourages the siting of incompatible uses adjacent to general 
aviation airports.
RCW 36.70A.510, RCW 36.70.547, New in 1996)
Note: The zoning regulations must be filed with the Aviation Division 
of WSDOT.  WAC 365-196-455 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

City is not adjacent to “general” 
aviation airport but is adjacent to a 
military base and has regulations 
in OHMC 19.50 that creates an 
overlay zone on use restrictions.  

b. If there is a Military Base within or adjacent to the jurisdiction 
employing 100 or more personnel: zoning that discourages the siting
of incompatible uses adjacent to military bases.
RCW 36.70A.530(3), New in 2004.  WAC 365-196-475

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

See above. 

o. Residential structures that are occupied by persons with handicaps
must be regulated the same as a similar residential structure 
occupied by a family or other unrelated individuals.
RCW 36.70A.410, WAC 365-196-860

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further 

review 
needed 

The definitions should be 
reviewed against current State 
law. 

p. Cities adjacent to I-5, I-90, I-405, or SR 520 and counties -- for lands 
within 1 mile of these highways -- must adopt regulations that allow
electric vehicle infrastructure (EVI) as a use in all areas except those 
zoned for residential or resource use, or critical areas by July 1, 2011.
RCW 36.70A.695, New in 2009

 No
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further

review
needed

NA 

q. Development regulations of all jurisdictions must allow electric
vehicle battery charging stations in all areas except those zoned for
residential or resource use, or critical areas by July 1, 2011.
RCW 36.70A.695, New in 2009

 No 
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes 
 No
 Further

review
needed

OHMC does not address EV 
charging stations but the are not 
prohibited either.  Language can 
be added to specifically allow 
them. 

13. Subdivision Code regulations

a. Subdivision code is consistent with and implements
comprehensive plan policies.
RCW 36.70A.030(7)and 36.70A.040(4)(d), WAC 365-196-820 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 21.10.010 specifies the 
implementation of the 
Comprehensive Plan goals and 
policies. 

b. Code requires written findings documenting that proposed 
subdivisions provide appropriate provision under RCW
58.17.110(2)(a) for:  Streets or roads, sidewalks, alleys, other public

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

OHMC Title 21 addresses this 
requirement in various sections 
related to subdivision 

42

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.450
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.450
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-865
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35.21.684
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35.63.160
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=35A.21.312
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.01.225
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.63A.215
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70.547
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-455
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.530
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-475
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.410
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-860
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.695
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.695
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-820
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.110
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.110


ways, transit stops, and other features that assure safe walking 
conditions for students; potable water supplies [RCW 19.27.097], 
sanitary wastes, and drainage ways (stormwater retention and 
detention); open spaces, parks and recreation, and playgrounds; 
and schools and school grounds.  WAC 365-196-820(1) 

review 
needed 

requirements. 

c. Subdivision regulations may implement traffic demand 
management (TDM) policies.
RCW 36.70A.070(6)(a)(vi)

 No 
 Yes
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

N/A 

d. Preliminary subdivision approvals under RCW 58.17.140 are valid 
for a period of five, seven, or nine years.  [RCW 58.17.140 and RCW
58.17.170.  
Amended 2010 by SB 6544.  Expires 2014. 
Amended 2012 by HB 2152 
Note: House Bill 2152, adopted by the Legislature in 2012, modified 
timelines.  The preliminary plat approval is valid for: seven years if 
the date of preliminary plat approval is on or before December 31, 
2014; five years if the preliminary plat approval is issued on or after 
January 1, 2015; and nine years if the project is located within city 
limits, not subject to the shoreline management act, and the 
preliminary plat is approved on or after December 31, 2007. 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes 
 No
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 21.20.080 needs to be 
amended to reflect this change. 

14. Concurrency , Impact Fees, and TDM

a. The transportation concurrency ordinance includes specific
language that prohibits development when level of service 
standards for transportation facilities cannot be met.
RCW 36.70A.070(6)(b) 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 11.32 is a chapter 
dedicated to concurrency and 
11.32.040.(5) includes language 
for permit denial failing 
concurrency. 

b. If adopted: impact fee methods are consistent with RCW 82.02.050
through 100
Note: The timeframe for expending or encumbering impact fees has
been extended to ten years.  RCW 82.02.070 and RCW 82.02.080, 
Amended in 2011.  WAC 365-196-850

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes 
 No
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 3.63.070(5) needs to be 
amended to reflect the 10 year 
time period. 

If required by RCW 70.94.527: a commute trip reduction ordinance 
to reduce the proportion of single-occupant vehicle commute trips.  
RCW 70.94.521-551, Amended in 2006.  WAC 468-63  
Note: WSDOT maintains a list of affected jurisdictions 

 No 
 Yes

Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

Oak Harbor is not on the list of 
affected jurisdictions.  

15. Siting Essential Public Facilities (EPFs)

Regulations are consistent with Essential Public Facility siting process in 
countywide planning policies or city comprehensive plan, and do not 
preclude the siting of EPFs.  
RCW 36.70A.200(5) 
WAC 365-196-550 

 No
 Yes 

Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 19.38 has language to 
include siting of essential public 
facilities. 

16. Project Review Procedures

Project review processes integrate permit and environmental review 

for: notice of application; notice of complete application; one open-

record public hearing; allowing applicants to combine public hearings 

and decisions for multiple permits; notice of decision; one closed-record 

appeal. 
RCW 36.70A.470, RCW 36.70B and RCW 43.21C 
WAC 365-196-845 

 No
 Yes 

Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further

review
needed

OHMC 18.20.360 addresses 
integrated permit process 
procedures 

17. General Provisions: The GMA requires that development regulations be consistent with and implement the comprehensive plan.  RCW
36.70A.030(7) and .040(4)(d).  Regulations should also include: 

a. A process for early and continuous public participation in the 
development regulation development and amendment process.
RCW 36.70A.020(11),.035, .130 and .140

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No 
 Further

Development Regulations 
amendments are Type V and 
public notices requirements are 

43

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=19.27.097
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=365-196-820
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.140
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.170
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=58.17.170
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/billinfo/summary.aspx?bill=6544&year=2010
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=82.02.050
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=82.02.050
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=82.02.070
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=82.02.080
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-850
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.94.527
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.94.521
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=468-63&full=true
http://www.wsdot.wa.gov/TDM/Contacts/countyJurisdictions.htm
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.200
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-550
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.470
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70B
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.21C
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-845
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.030
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.040
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.020
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.035
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.130
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.140


review 
needed 

in OHMC 18.20.380(5). 

b. A process to assure that proposed regulatory or administrative
actions do not result in an unconstitutional taking of private
property.
RCW 36.70A.370, WAC 365-196-855
Note: See Attorney General’s Advisory Memorandum: Avoiding
Unconstitutional Takings of Private Property. 

 No
 Yes 
Location(s) 

 Yes
 No
 Further 

review 
needed 

OHMC Title 19 has specific 
sections dedicated for flexibility 
from the strict code requirement 
through variances, map 
amendments etc.  Code 
amendment procedures and 
criteria may need revising. 

This checklist covers the requirements of the Growth Management Act through the laws of 
2012.  It does not address related issues, or things that are not required but that are commonly 
found in comprehensive plans and the implementing regulations.  It may be useful to look at 
the expanded checklists (one for comprehensive plans, one for development regulations) and 
the Growth Management Act Amendment Changes 1995-2012 (amended annually).  For more 
information, please visit: 
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Services/localgovernment/GrowthManagement/Growth-
Management-Planning-Topics/Pages/GMA-Periodic-Update.aspx  

44

http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.370
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=365-196-855
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/DesktopModules/CTEDPublications/CTEDPublicationsView.aspx?tabID=0&ItemID=4157&MId=944&wversion=Staging
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/DesktopModules/CTEDPublications/CTEDPublicationsView.aspx?tabID=0&ItemID=4157&MId=944&wversion=Staging
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Services/localgovernment/GrowthManagement/Growth-Management-Planning-Topics/Pages/GMA-Periodic-Update.aspx
http://www.commerce.wa.gov/Services/localgovernment/GrowthManagement/Growth-Management-Planning-Topics/Pages/GMA-Periodic-Update.aspx


Public Participation 

Plan 
2016 Comprehensive Plan Update 

Section RCW 36.70A.140 of Washington Statutes requires local 

governments to establish and broadly communicate to the public a Public 

Participation Plan which identifies procedures providing for “early and 

continuous public participation” in the amendment of the Comprehensive 

Plan and development regulations implementing such plan. 

2013 

Development Services Department 

City of Oak Harbor 

10/22/2013 

DRAFT 

45



Introduction 

Oak Harbor’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations need to reviewed periodically 

and updated to reflect current laws, correct errors, input new data, and/or clarify intent.  

Washington State’s Growth Management Act (GMA) requires Oak Harbor to undertake this 

review and update its Comprehensive Plan and development regulations by June 2016.   

As part of this update process, Section 36.70A.140 of the Revised Code of Washington requires 

local governments to establish and broadly communicate to the public a Public Participation Plan 

which identifies procedures providing for “early and continuous public participation” in the 

amendment of the Comprehensive Plan and development regulations implementing such plan. 

The City recognizes the importance and necessity of the public involvement process.  The City 

has several boards and commissions that serve in various capacities to foster public input, 

discuss complex issues, further goals and policies of adopted plans and make recommendations 

to the City Council.  The Planning Commission of Oak Harbor serves as the hearing body for 

amendments and updates to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations.  The 

Planning Commission makes recommendations to the City Council who ultimately decides on 

the adoption of amendments and updates.  All meetings of the Planning Commission and the 

City Council are open to the public and have dedicated time for public input on their agenda. 

Goals and Objectives 

The goal of the Public Participation Plan is to provide the public with complete information, 

timely public notice, full public access to key decision points, and support early and continuous 

involvement in the process.  It is also the goal of the PPP to provide the public with sufficient 

information so that there is an understanding of the process, and opportunities to review and 

comment on updates before decisions are made. Public is defined broadly to include individual 

citizens, interest groups, trade groups, government agencies, utilities and service providers and 

businesses. 

The City’s current Comprehensive Plan and development regulations integrate public 

involvement into its decision making process.  OHMC 18.15 outlines the requirements for public 

involvement during annual amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and OHMC 18.20 provides 

the regulations for public noticing for permit processes and other development regulated 

activities.  Though the City will abide by all the existing requirements, this Public Participation 

Plan describes the steps it will take to involve the community in decisions regarding the 2016 

Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update. 

Stakeholders and Public Groups  

The GMA does not specifically exempt any portion of a comprehensive plan or development 

regulation from being subject to review and evaluation.  While some elements may not require 

46



 

 

updating others may need to be updated based on changes to laws.  The Department of 

Commerce has provided a checklist to help cities determine the portions of a comprehensive plan 

that needs to be updated.  A review of the plan against this checklist provides a scope of the 

amendments necessary to comply with GMA. 

The scope of the update will determine the involvement of key stakeholders and interest groups.  

It is beneficial to identify these groups and involves them early in the process.  Some of the 

groups and individuals that could have a potential interest in public input and involvement 

opportunities are identified below.  The list below serves as an initial identifier of interested 

groups and is not intended to exclude any groups from the process. 

 Government agencies – state, county, school district, etc. 

 NAS Whidbey Island 

 Chamber of Commerce and other business groups 

 Media – newspaper 

 Organizations and individuals who have been notified of public hearings for major 

projects, or organizations and individuals who have submitted written comments on other 

major projects. 

 Whidbey Environmental Action Network (WEAN) 

 Skagit/Island Counties Builders Association (SICBA) 

Information Access 
All reports and documents generated for the 2016 Update to the Comprehensive Plan are 

available to the public for review.  This information may be viewed at Oak Harbor’s City Hall or 

online at the City’s website www.oakharbor.org under the Development Services 

Department/Planning Division/Plans Under Progress tab. 

Outreach Techniques 

As mentioned earlier, the Planning Commission shall serve as the primary body to discuss, 

review and recommend changes to policies and regulations regarding the 2016 update.  The 

Planning Commission meetings will be advertised on the City’s website and in the local 

newspaper.  Agendas for the Planning Commission meetings are noticed in the newspaper 

generally two weeks prior to the meeting date.  Reports to the Planning Commission are posted 

on the City’s website approximately five days before the meeting date.  

The City maintains an active involvement in the local government access cable channel.  All 

Planning Commission meetings are recorded and then played back on Channel 10 a minimum of 

5 times a week until the next meeting.  The rebroadcasting provides the public access to the 

process and information of key decisions during the review process. 

47

http://www.oakharbor.org/


 

 

The City’s website www.oakharbor.org has links on the home page to the Planning 

Commission’s agendas and reports.  It lists the date of the next upcoming Planning Commission 

meeting on the calendar.  The website also has an “Oak Harbor News” section on the homepage 

that will also be used to notice of any special meetings associated with the 2016 update.  

The City’s website also contains information on the 2016 update in the Development Services 

section under “Departments” tab on the homepage.  It is under the “Plans Under Progress” 

section of the Planning Division.  This section of the website will have access to reports, studies, 

and issue papers that are related to the update. 

The Development Services Department maintains a list of interested groups and individuals that 

have expressed interest in Comprehensive Plan related issues since 2005.  Notices of meeting 

related to the 2016 update will be mailed to them. 

During the update process, various other methods of outreach may be used based on the kind of 

input that is most efficient and helpful to the issue under consideration.  This can range from 

open houses, surveys, ad hoc committees, workshops, public displays etc.  

Input Mechanisms 

The City accepts input and comments from the public through a variety of means.  Members of 

the public can visit with planners in the Development Services Department to make comments 

and provide input.  Members of the public can also make comments by calling the Development 

Services Department at 360-279-4510.  Written comments are the most effective way to get on 

record with the Comprehensive Plan update.  Comments can be faxed to the City at 360-279-

4519 or mailed to: 

Development Services Department 

Attn: 2016 Update 

865 SE Barrington Ave 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

Public comments can also be emailed to a dedicated 2016 update email account – 

2016update@oakharbor.org. 

The public may also make verbal comments or submit written comments at Planning 

Commission meetings and City Council meetings.  There is a dedicated time on the agenda for 

public input on general issues at these meetings.  The Planning Commission and City Council 

generally entertain public comments when a particular Comprehensive Plan item is on the 

agenda for discussion, even if it is not scheduled for a public hearing. 

Interested members of the public or a representative of a group, with expressed comments on a 

particular topic may request to serve on committees if one it activated. 

48

http://www.oakharbor.org/
mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org


 

 

Contact information 

The primary contact for the update is provided below. 

Senior Planner, Cac Kamak, AICP. 

Development Services Division 

Attn: 2016 Update 

865 SE Barrington Ave 

Oak Harbor, WA 98277 

 

Email: 2016update@oakharbor.org 

Website: www.oakharbor.org 

 

 

49

mailto:2016update@oakharbor.org

	Agenda -  October 22, 2013 
	Minutes - September 24, 2013
	Marijuana Related Uses – Code Amendment Project
	2016 Comprehensive Plan Update – County/City



